

# An Bille um Cheathrú Chultúir 1916, 2021 Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Bill 2021

Mar a tionscnaíodh

As initiated



# AN BILLE UM CHEATHRÚ CHULTÚIR 1916, 2021 CEATHRÚ CHULTÚIR 1916 BILL 2021

Mar a tionscnaíodh As initiated

#### **CONTENTS**

#### PART 1

#### PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL

#### Section

- 1. Short title and citation
- 2. Interpretation
- 3. Preservation Order
- 4. Laying of orders
- 5. Local Authority obligations

#### PART 2

## Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta

- 6. Location of An Cheathrú
- 7. Establishment
- 8. Boundary extension
- 9. Functions of An Cheathrú
- 10. Commercial Rates
- 11. Donations and gifts
- 12. Appointment of directors of Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta
- 13. Grounds for approval of certain expenditure
- 14. Board, Cathaoirleach and staff of Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta
- 15. Non-remuneration for Board members
- 16. Board membership period
- 17. Employees disbarred from Board membership
- 18. Disallowance of staff being Board member
- 19. Resignation of Board member
- 20. Removal of Board member

[No. 36 of 2021]

- 21. Gender balance
- 22. Staff terms and conditions
- 23. Staff numbers
- 24. Contractual staff
- 25. Staff attending Board meetings
- 26. Implementation team
- 27. Accounts and audits
- 28. Accountability to Committee of Public Accounts
- 29. Accountability of chief executive to other Oireachtas Committees
- 30. Shareholder in Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta
- 31. Provisions relating to subletting
- 32. Moore Street Market stall holders

#### SCHEDULE 1

Moore Street Battlefield Area

# SCHEDULE 2

Grounds for Approval, of Existing or Proposed Buildings or Premises

# Acts Referred to

Companies Act 2014 (No. 38)

Companies Acts 1963 to 2014

Finance Act 1991 (No. 13)

Landlord and Tenant Acts 1967 to 1994

Local Government Act 2001 (No. 37)

National Monuments Act, 1930 (No. 2)

Public Service Management (Recruitment and Appointments) Act 2004 (No. 33)



# AN BILLE UM CHEATHRÚ CHULTÚIR 1916, 2021 CEATHRÚ CHULTÚIR 1916 BILL 2021

# Bill

entitled

An Act to provide for the establishment of a body to be known as *Ceathrú Chultúir* 1916 Teoranta, to define its functions in relation to the preservation, restoration and management of the cultural historical quarter within the Moore Street Battlefield Area in line with the functions, aims and objectives set for it in this Act and to provide for connected matters.

# Be it enacted by the Oireachtas as follows:

10

5

#### PART 1

#### PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL

### Short title and citation

1. This Act may be cited as the Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Act 2021.

Interpretation 15

- 2. In this Act—
  - "An Cheathrú" shall be taken to mean Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta;
  - "building or premises" shall include, where the context allows, a proposed building or premises;
  - "establishment day" means the day appointed by the Minister under *section 7* to be the establishment day;
  - "functions" shall include powers and duties, and references to the performance of functions shall include, as respects powers and duties, references to the exercise of the powers and the carrying out of the duties;
  - "local authority" is taken to be a reference to Dublin City Council;

- "market stall holders" means those people who have been issued a licence or permit to engage in outdoor market trading by the local authority;
- "Moore Street Battlefield Area" means the Moore Street Battlefield National Monument Area as designated by the High Court in [2016] IEHC 150, 2015/696/JR &

2016/51/MCA and as indicated in Appendix 3 of the Moore Street Advisory Group's report "The Moore Street Report - Securing History" (2017); and which for clarity includes the lands, buildings streets and lanes within an area including Moore Street, Henry Place, O'Rahilly Parade and Moore Lane, in which the 1916 Rising Volunteers travelled after evacuating the GPO, from a door on Henry Street, to Moore Street in advance of the surrender by the President of the declared Irish Republic Commandant Pádraig Mac Piarais on 30 April 1916;

"Minister" means the Minister for Housing, Local Government and Heritage or the Minister with whom lies the responsibility for Heritage;

"Oireachtas Joint Committee on Housing, Local Government and Heritage" means that 10 very committee or such Oireachtas Joint Committee which has within its remit questions of Heritage;

"Oireachtas Joint Committee on Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and the Media" means that very Committee or such Oireachtas Joint Committee which has within its remit questions of Culture.

#### **Preservation Order**

- (1) In pursuit of section 8 and 9 of Part II of the National Monuments Act, 1930 the Minister shall issue a preservation order on:
  - (a) the terrace and curtilage of Nos. 10 to 25 Moore Street;
  - (b) the GPO; 20
  - (c) the buildings known as the White House and the O'Brien's Bottling Store in Henry Place;
  - (d) the lanes, streets and boundaries that are known as Moore Street, Moore Lane, Henry Place and O'Rahilly Parade.
  - (2) The establishment of a preservation order shall be as a result of the site, as defined for 25 the purposes of this legislation in section 2 as the 'Moore Street Battlefield Area', as being a national monument of extreme importance to the State.

# Laying of orders

Every order (other than an order under section 3) made by the Minister under this Act shall be laid before each House of the Oireachtas as soon as may be after it is made, and 30 if a resolution annulling the order is passed by either such House within the next 21 days on which that House sits after the order is laid before it, the order shall be annulled accordingly, but without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done thereunder.

#### **Local Authority obligations**

(1) Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2001 and other related Acts, 35 Dublin City Council shall have a legal obligation to carry out various duties upon public streets, such as maintenance and upkeep of public walkways, roads, rubbish collections, and lighting together with other utility companies or agencies such as Bord Soláthair Leictreachais, Bórd Gáis, Uisce Éireann. These obligations shall remain with the Local Authority and these utility companies or agencies.

40

5

(2) Any current duties or obligations that these agencies are carrying out, or should be carrying out, within what shall become a designated Culture Quarter after the establishment day shall remain their obligation unless expressly stated within the Act, an amendment to this Act or by Ministerial Order or other statutory instruments. It shall be the duty of these agencies, the Minister, and An Cheathrú to ensure that these obligations are met.

5

#### PART 2

### CEATHRÚ CHULTÚIR 1916 TEORANTA

#### Location of An Cheathrú

6. An Cheathrú shall operate within the Moore Street Battlefield Area and it shall manage and act as management company for all lands and properties within State ownership in this area, and may act with the agreement of the Minister for Finance and the property owners as a management company for other properties within private ownership in the Moore Street Battlefield Area.

Establishment 15

- 7. (1) There shall stand established with the agreement of the Minister, within 12 months of the establishment day, a body to be known as *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta* (in this Act referred to as An Cheathrú), to perform the functions conferred on it by or under this Act.
  - (2) The Minister shall by order appoint a day to be the establishment day of An Cheathrú for the purposes of this Act, which shall be within three months of the passing of this Act.

#### **Boundary extension**

- 8. (1) The Minister may by order, with the consent of the Minister for Finance, extend the area of *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta*, to include land contiguous to the boundaries of the Moore Street Battlefield Area.
  - (2) Where an order under this section is in force, every reference in this Act to An Cheathrú shall be construed as a reference to the area described in *Schedule 1* as extended or varied by that order.
  - (3) The Minister may, with the consent of the Minister for Finance, by order amend or revoke an order under this section, including an order under *subsection* (1).

#### Functions of An Cheathrú

- **9.** (1) The functions and purpose of An Cheathrú shall, with the agreement of the Minister and the Minister for Finance, be to:
  - (a) (i) formulate strategies to ensure that the Moore Street Battlefield Area shall in its elements reflect the ideals of the revolutionary men and women of 1916
     Rising, and become a hub of activities including, but not limited to:

	(I)	commemorative;	
	(II)	cultural;	
	(III)	artistic;	
	(IV)	musical;	
	(V)	dramatic;	5
	(VI)	historical;	
	(VII)	literature;	
	(VIII)	poetry;	
	(IX)	the Irish language;	
	(X)	sports, in particular the GAA;	10
	and	other appropriate and related activities, and	
	` /	ntain the shopping and trading tradition of the area and make it an active area to both visit and live in;	
		and facilitate the dissemination of information of a historical, cultural a language interest;	15
	(c) prepare	a development plan;	
		estimates of the costs of implementation of the development plan and possible funding options;	
	historiar language	with market stall holders, relatives of the 1916 Rising participants, as, archaeologists, cultural organisations, specialist cultural groups, Irish e organisations, local residents and commercial, community and the local y as part of the implementation of its development plan.	20
(2)		may, with the consent of the Minister, enter into arrangements with other perform on behalf of An Cheathrú such of its functions as An Cheathrú cessary.	25
(3)	-	ng its functions under <i>subsection</i> (1) An Cheathrú may consult with a y established by or under statute.	
(4)	An Cheathrú	may exploit commercial opportunities arising from its functions.	
(5)	profit) arisin	In may receive income (including any amount, right, interest, benefit or a g from or make payments (or otherwise provide consideration) in respect functions referred to in <i>subsection</i> (1).	30
(6)	which with t	is shall set out a preferred usage policy in line with <i>subsection</i> (1)(a), the agreement of the Minister and in cooperation with the local authority of the and encourage all property owners in the Moore Street Battlefield area ith.	35
(7)		shall discourage the usage of a property for any other purpose contrary ses of this Act.	

#### **Commercial Rates**

- 10. (1) The Minister may seek an agreement with the local authority that a proportion of the commercial rates which is due from properties in the Moore Street Battlefield Area shall be paid to *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta* annually for the purposes of ensuring that purposes of An Cheathrú and of this Act can be delivered; and to ensure the upkeep of the area.
  - (2) The local authority may agree to set a special Moore Street Battlefield Area rate, which could be lower than the commercial rate which would otherwise be charged on a similar property in the city, so as to ensure that An Cheathrú could attract specific designated uses for the properties under its remit.

5

10

15

#### **Donations and gifts**

- 11. (1) An Cheathrú may receive donations, gifts and bequests, and that the Minister for Finance in consultation with The Minister may consider it appropriate to designate that such donations, gifts and bequest will not be liable to any tax or levies, and could lead to a tax rebate for the donor, gifter or estate. All such donations, gifts or bequest may only be accepted by An Cheathrú if such is for the sole benefit of An Cheathrú in carrying out its functions and duties.
  - (2) All donors, gifters and benefactors shall be informed that in the event of the value of a donation, gift or bequest being over the value of €200 that their name and the value of the said donation, gift or bequest shall be published as an appendix to the annual accounts on the year such a donation, gift or bequest was made.
  - (3) An Cheathrú shall not accept a gift if the trusts, terms or conditions attached to it would be inconsistent with or prejudice the effective performance of the functions of the An Cheathrú.
  - (4) Particulars in relation to any gift accepted under this section shall be included in the annual report including:
    - (a) a register of donor names above a value of €200;
    - (b) a description of the gift; and
    - (c) particulars of any condition attached to a gift.
  - (5) Any gift that does not meet the values of An Cheathrú and/or agree to inclusion in such a register shall be returned.

# Appointment of directors of Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta

12. Notwithstanding any provision of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2014, the Minister shall appoint the directors of *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta* from within the board of An Cheathrú.
35

## Grounds for approval of certain expenditure

13. The Minister for Finance may consider granting An Cheathrú all or such reliefs and conditions as she or he decides similar to those granted to other designated cultural or other such quarters.

#### Board, Cathaoirleach and staff of Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta

- **14.** (1) The board of *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta* shall consist of 15 members:
  - (a) one member appointed by the Minister shall represent the Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and the Media;
  - (b) two members shall represent the relatives of the 1916 Rising participants, and 5 shall be appointed by the Minister, following a nomination process overseen by the Local Authority;
  - (c) two members shall be appointed by the Minister, having been nominated to represent the market stall holders and the local businesses in the Moore Street Battlefield Area;

10

20

- (d) two members shall be nominated from within the elected local authority membership;
- (e) three members shall be appointed by the Minister, one representing each of the Arts, Historical and Music communities;
- (f) the Director of the National Museum of Ireland, or an employee of that institution 15 nominated by the Director in their stead, shall be a member;
- (g) two members shall be appointed by the Minister having been nominated by the Irish language organisation;
- (h) one member shall be appointed by the Minister having been nominated by the Dublin Chamber of Commerce; and
- (i) one member shall be appointed by the Minister having been nominated by the board of Fáilte Ireland.
- (2) An Cathaoirleach of An Cheathrú shall be agreed, by a majority vote if required, from among the members of the board of An Cheathrú Cultúr Teoranta at its first meeting.
   The CEO shall chair the first meeting of An Cheathrú until an Cathaoirleach has been agreed or elected. Only duly appointed board members present in person or remotely shall be entitled to vote in such a contest.

#### Non-remuneration for Board members

15. Board members shall not be entitled to paid remuneration for their term of office, but they may be entitled to reimbursement of out of pocket expenses while carrying out their duties as a member of the Board of An Cheathrú, subject to the agreement of the board of An Cheathrú.

#### **Board membership period**

16. The term of office of a member of the Board of An Cheathrú shall be for a period of four years other than for members appointed under section 14(1)(f). A member of An Cheathrú 35 whose term of office expires by the effluxion of time shall not be eligible for reappointment as a member of An Cheathrú after two consecutive terms, but may be eligible following the lapse of a full four year period after the end of their second term.

#### **Employees disbarred from Board membership**

17. No person shall be a member of the board of An Cheathrú while employed by An Cheathrú.

## Disallowance of staff being Board member

18. Membership of the board of An Cheathrú is not permitted for business owners in the Moore Street Historical Area, or if a family member is a ratepayer, other than those covered by section 14(1)(c).

# Resignation of Board member

19. A member of An Cheathrú may resign from An Cheathrú by letter addressed to the Minister and the resignation shall take effect on the date specified therein or upon receipt of the letter by the Minister, whichever is the later.

# Removal of Board member

20. A member of An Cheathrú may at any time be removed from membership of An Cheathrú by the Minister if, in the Minister's opinion, the member has become incapable through ill-health of performing his or her functions, or has committed stated misbehaviour, or his or her removal appears to the Minister to be necessary for the effective performance by An Cheathrú of its functions.

15

#### Gender balance

21. In appointing persons to be members of An Cheathrú, the Minister shall insofar as is practicable and having regard to relevant experience, ensure an equitable gender balance between men and women in the composition of An Cheathrú.

#### Staff terms and conditions

22. An Cheathrú shall employ staff as required, and their terms and conditions including salaries shall be analogous to those in the Public Service and as and must follow duties as set out in the Public Service Management (Recruitment and Appointments) Act 2004, as 25 amended.

#### Staff numbers

23. The number of staff and the grades employed directly by An Cheathrú shall be included yearly in the annual reports of An Cheathrú.

Contractual staff 30

**24.** The number of personnel hired on contracts for a specific project and the value of all such contracts shall be included yearly in the annual reports of An Cheathrú.

#### **Staff attending Board meetings**

25. Three staff members may attend the board meetings in a non-voting capacity and shall

act as shadow directors in accordance with section 221 of the Companies Act 2014. One of these staff members shall be the Chief Executive Officer, once appointed. The other two shall be nominated by the staff from among the workforce of An Cheathrú.

### Implementation team

- 26. (1) On the establishment day of An Cheathrú, the Minister may, with the agreement of the Minister for Finance, appoint an implementation team tasked with further developing the vision for the Moore Street Battlefield Area as a guide to, and pending the incorporation of, Ceathrú Chultúir 1916.
  - (2) The implementation team of less than 10 people may consist of specialists in the fields of conservational architecture, archaeology, cultural tourism, the history of the 1916 Rising, event management, and museums.
  - (3) The implementation team shall report within nine months and following the agreement of the Minister shall present the report to the board of *Ceathrú Chultúir* 1916 Teoranta at its inaugural meeting.
  - (4) The implementation team shall be dissolved following its presentation of its report, unless required to continue its work by the Minister and then the team shall become answerable to, and shall take instructions from, the board of An Cheathrú; but shall only remain in existence until such time as so required, and no later than the official opening of the cultural quarter Ceathrú Chultúir 1916. The funding of the implementation team beyond its report to the inaugural board meeting of An Cheathrú shall be a matter for the Minister.

#### Accounts and audits

- 27. (1) The chief executive officer, following the agreement of the Board of An Cheathrú, shall submit estimates of income and expenditure to the Minister in such form, in respect of such periods and at such times, as may be required by the Minister and shall furnish to the Minister any information which the Minister may require in relation to such estimates, including proposals and future plans relating to the discharge by Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta of its functions over a period of years, as required.
  - (2) The chief executive officer, under the direction of the board of An Cheathrú, shall cause to be kept, on a continuous basis and in either or both a legible and a machine readable form, all proper books and records of account of all income and expenditure of An Cheathrú, and of the sources of such income and the subject matter of such expenditure, and of the property, assets and liabilities of An Cheathrú and shall keep and shall account to An Cheathrú for all such special accounts as the Minister or An Cheathrú, with the consent of the Minister, may from time to time direct should be kept.
  - (3) (a) An Cheathrú, the chief executive officer and any relevant member of the staff of An Cheathrú shall, whenever so requested by the Minister, permit any person appointed by the Minister to examine the books or other records of account of An Cheathrú in respect of any financial year or other period and shall facilitate any such examination, and An Cheathrú shall pay such fee therefor as may be fixed by the Minister.

- (b) In this subsection "relevant member of the staff of An Cheathrú" means a member of the staff of An Cheathrú in respect of whom there have been duly assigned duties which relate to the books or other records of account referred to in *paragraph* (a).
- (4) The accounts of An Cheathrú for each financial year shall be kept in such a form and manner as may be specified by the Minister and be prepared by the chief executive and approved by An Cheathrú as soon as practicable but not later than three months after the end of the financial year to which they relate for submission to the Comptroller and Auditor General for audit.
- (5) A copy of the accounts referred to in *subsection (4)* and the report of the Comptroller and Auditor General thereon shall, immediately after the audit of the Comptroller and Auditor General, be presented to the members of An Cheathrú and to the Minister as soon as practicable and the Minister shall cause a copy of these documents to be laid before each House of the Oireachtas.
- (6) The financial year of An Cheathrú shall be the period of 12 months ending on 31 December in any year, and for the purposes of this section the period commencing on the establishment day of An Cheathrú and ending on the following 31 December shall be deemed to be a financial year.

# **Accountability to Committee of Public Accounts**

28. The chief executive officer shall, whenever he or she is required to do so by a Committee of Dáil Éireann established under the Standing Orders of Dáil Éireann to examine and report to Dáil Éireann on the appropriation accounts and the reports of the Comptroller and Auditor General, give evidence to that Committee on all matters pertaining to the expenditure of An Cheathrú.

25

30

#### Accountability of chief executive to other Oireachtas Committees

- **29.** (1) In this section "Committee" means a Committee appointed by either House of the Oireachtas or jointly by both Houses of the Oireachtas (other than the Committee referred to in *section 28* or the Committee on Members' Interests of Dáil Éireann or the Committee on Members' Interests of Seanad Éireann) or a subcommittee of such a Committee.
  - (2) Subject to *subsection* (3), the chief executive shall, at the request in writing of a Committee, attend before it to give account for the general administration of An Cheathrú.
  - (3) (a) An Cheathrú shall, not later than 30 June in each year, make a report to the Minister (in this section referred to as the "annual report") in such form as the Minister may approve, on the performance of its functions and activities during the preceding year and the Minister shall cause copies of each annual report to be laid before each House of the Oireachtas.
    - (b) Each annual report shall include information in such form and regarding such matters as the Minister may direct.
  - (4) (a) An Cheathrú shall, not later than 30 June in each year, make a report to the Minister (in this section referred to as the "annual report") and the Oireachtas

Joint Committees of Housing, Local Government and Heritage the Oireachtas Joint Committee on Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sports and the Media in such form as the Minister may approve, on the performance of its functions and activities during the preceding year and the Minister shall cause copies of each annual report to be laid before each House of the Oireachtas.

5

- (b) Each annual report shall include information in such form and regarding such matters as the Minister may direct.
- (c) An Cheathrú may, from time to time, make such other reports to the Minister relating to its functions as it thinks fit or as the Minister may require.
- (d) In addition to information provided by An Cheathrú in its annual report and in reports made pursuant to *paragraph* (c), An Cheathrú shall supply to the Minister, the Oireachtas Joint Committee for Housing, Local Government and Heritage and the Oireachtas Joint Committee on Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sports and the Media and the local authority such information as may from time to time be required regarding the performance of its functions.

15

10

(e) The Minister may, from time to time, give An Cheathrú specific directions in relation to the annual report or other reports under *paragraph* (c).

# Shareholder in Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta

**30.** Notwithstanding any provision of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2014, the Minister for Housing, Local Government and Heritage, through their nominees, shall be the sole shareholder of *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta*.

20

#### Provisions relating to subletting

**31.** (1) Notwithstanding any provision of the Landlord and Tenant Acts 1967 to 1994, where a person (in this section referred to as "the tenant") enters into a tenancy agreement with An Cheathrú in respect of any premises in the Area then the tenant shall not assign, sublet or share possession of the said premises, or any part thereof, without the prior consent in writing of *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta*.

25

(2) (a) Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to any assignment, subletting or sharing of possession referred to in subsection (1).

30

(b) For the purposes of this section An Cheathrú shall be deemed not to be acting unreasonably in withholding its consent where the proposed assignee or sublessee of the premises or part thereof or the person with whom the tenant proposes to share possession of the premises or part thereof (as the case may be) intends to use the said premises or such part for a use or activity which, having regard to *Schedule 2*, An Cheathrú would not have approved of for the purposes of Chapter VII of Part I of the Finance Act 1991, as amended.

35

(3) As a condition to giving a consent for the purposes of *subsection* (1), An Cheathrú shall, where appropriate, be entitled to require that the rent payable by the tenant assigning, subletting or sharing possession of the premises concerned, or part thereof, be increased so as to become and be a rent not exceeding the full open market rent of the said premises at—

- (a) the commencement date of the term of the tenancy, or
- (b) the last review date or last date of automatic increase in rent immediately preceding such assignment, subletting or sharing possession, as the case may be, whichever is the later.

#### **Moore Street Market stall holders**

- 32. (1) For the first 12 months succeeding establishment date the market stall holders shall continue to be subject to the same by-laws and Acts, they currently fall under. The Minister shall, following consultation with the local authority, An Cheathrú and the market stall holders indicate whether the market stall operating licences shall thereafter be issued and overseen by An Cheathrú or continue to be issued and overseen by the local authority with conditions attached no less favourable that at present.
  - (2) The Moore Street Market will become a permanent market.

#### SCHEDULE 1

#### Section 2

#### Moore Street Battlefield Area

#### *Interpretation*

1. In this Schedule—

"thoroughfare" includes any bridge, green, hill, river and street;

a reference to a line drawn along any thoroughfare is a reference to a line drawn along the centre of that thoroughfare;

a reference to a projection of any thoroughfare is a reference to a projection of a line drawn along the centre of that thoroughfare; a reference to the point where any thoroughfare or projection of any thoroughfare intersects or joins any other thoroughfare is a reference to the point where a line drawn along the centre of one thoroughfare, or in the case of a projection of a thoroughfare, along the projection, would be intersected or joined by a line drawn along the centre of the other thoroughfare.

10

15

# Description of Moore Street Battlefield Area

That part of Dublin 1 designated by the High Court in [2016] IEHC 150, 2015/696/JR & 2016/51/MCA and as indicated in Appendix 3 of the Moore Street Advisory Group's report "The Moore Street Report - Securing History" (2017); and which for clarity includes the lands, buildings streets and lanes within an area including Moore Street, Henry Place, O'Rahilly Parade and Moore Lane, in which the 1916 Rising Volunteers travelled after evacuating the GPO, from a door on Henry Street, to Moore Street in advance of the surrender by the President of the declared Irish Republic Commandant Pádraig Mac Piarais on 30 April 1916.

#### SCHEDULE 2

Section 8

10

GROUNDS FOR APPROVAL, OF EXISTING OR PROPOSED BUILDINGS OR PREMISES

- 1. Any building or premises—
  - (a) where activities of a cultural nature are being carried out, or are to be carried out 5 if that building or premises is duly approved of by *Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta* for those activities, or
  - (b) where activities of a business undertaking providing services for tourists or other visitors to the Area are being carried out or are to be carried out if that building or premises is duly approved of by An Cheathrú for that activity, or
  - (c) where activities by a business undertaking are being carried out, or are to be carried out if that building or premises is duly approved of by An Cheathrú those activities.
- Buildings or premises for the use of financial institutions or which are general office developments (except to the extent that it relates to the functions of An Cheathrú or to the purposes of the cultural quarter shall not be approved in any part of the Area other than a part which, in the opinion of An Cheathrú, is situate in the periphery of the Area.
- 3. Notwithstanding *scheduleparagraphs 1* and 2, approval by virtue of either of those paragraphs shall be refused where An Cheathrú is of the opinion that such an approval would be detrimental to a suitable mix of uses and activities in the Area or any part thereof.

# BILLE

(mar a tionscnaíodh)

dá ngairtear

# BILL

(as initiated)

entitled

Acht do dhéanamh socrú maidir le comhlacht a An Act to provide for the establishment of a body to bhunú ar a dtabharfar Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta, do mhíniú a fheidhmeanna i ndáil leis an gceathrú chultúir stairiúil laistigh de Limistéar Mhachaire Catha Shráid an Mhúraigh a chaomhnú, a aisiriú agus a bhainistiú de réir na bhfeidhmeanna, na n-aidhmeanna agus na gcuspóirí atá leagtha amach dó san Acht seo agus do dhéanamh socrú i dtaobh nithe gaolmhara.

Na Teachtaí Aengus Ó Snodaigh, Seán Mac Concradha, Deasún Mac Eilis, Críostóir Mac Aindriú, Máire Laoise Mhic Dhomhnaill agus Denise Uí Mhístéil a thug isteach,

11 Márta, 2021

be known as Ceathrú Chultúir 1916 Teoranta, to define its functions in relation to the preservation, restoration and management of the cultural historical quarter within the Moore Street Battlefield Area in line with the functions, aims and objectives set for it in this Act and to provide for connected matters.

Introduced by Deputies Aengus Ó Snodaigh, Seán Crowe, Dessie Ellis, Chris Andrews, Mary Lou McDonald and Denise Mitchell,

11th March, 2021

BAILE ÁTHA CLIATH ARNA FHOILSIÚ AG OIFIG AN tSOLÁTHAIR Le ceannach díreach ó FOILSEACHÁIN RIALTAIS, 52 FAICHE STIABHNA, BAILE ÁTHA CLIATH 2. (Teil: 01 - 6476834 nó 1890 213434; Fax: 01 - 6476843) nó trí aon díoltóir leabhai

**DUBLIN** PUBLISHED BY THE STATIONERY OFFICE To be purchased from GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS, 52 ST. STEPHEN'S GREEN, DUBLIN 2. (Tel: 01 - 6476834 or 1890 213434; Fax: 01 - 6476843) or through any bookseller

€3.05

